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WESTERN MARYLAND COLLEGE HISTORIC DISTRICT Est. 1864
(Listed on the National Register of
Historic Places)

West Main Street Private
Westminster

The Western Maryland College Historic District includes six
of the college's earliest surviving buildings and structures:
Carroll Hall (1873), Little Baker Chapel (1875), The
President's House (1889), Levine Hall (1891), Ward Memorial
Arch (1898), and Alumni Hall (1899).

The College was established by the Maryland Annual Conference
of the Methodist Protestant Church in 1864. It is located on
a site known as "0ld Commons," which had been a meeting and
picnicing area for the citizens of Westminster. The first
building, 0ld Main, was a brick and stone structure constructed
in 1866. It was added to in 1871, 1887, and 1890, and remained
the center for campus activities until it was demolished in
1956. The Wesleyan Theological Seminary was located at the
college during the mid-twentieth century.

The campus buildings within the historic district present an
excellent view of late nineteenth century public and residen-
tial architecture. Levine Hall is a brick structure with
Colonial Revival ornamentation and is the oldest college
classroom building still standing. Alumni Hall, with its

elaborate main facade and its gallaried auditorium, was
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designed by Jackson C. Gott of Baltimore and is architec-
turally the most prominent building on campus. Carroll

Hall was originally known as "Terrace Hill," the Victoric
Gothic style residence of the Reifsnider family, that has
performed various campus functions since its purchase by the
college in 1922. The President's House was built in 1889
for the residence of the college's president and, although
it has undergone various remodelings, it retains the outward

character of late 19th century residential architecture.

Little Baker Chapel is a stone structure built on a Greek-cross

plan that is unique to Carroll County's ecclesiastical archi-

tecture. The Ward Memorial Arch, relocated to its present

site 1n 1937, was built to honor the college's first president

Dr. James T. Ward and is one of the few examples of a major
public monument in the county. These buildings and their
setting of tree shaded grounds preserves a small portion of

the early campus and its history.
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CENCELENT ‘ __DETERIORATED X_._UNAL’ERE'J y;ORIG'NAL SITE
Xsoon __RUINS __ALTERED _MOVED DATE
_-FAIR __UNEXPQSED
one _structure moved in 1937
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL [iF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Maryland Cecllege Historic District, Wesiminster,
is situats the confines of the present onz hundred-nlus acre
collece camp comprises an area of abcu: three acreg at ix
southeas® The disirict is bounded on the south side ™y
I'nion Town Puqe and West Main Street, on the southeas* by Unien
Street, on the northeast by & line running rnorthwes:i To southeast
varalleling *th ?rcsident's House and Lit:ile 3aker Chapel, and on
the northeast bv a line running northwest o southwest and about 1090
feet northwest of the rear of the President’s House *to West Main

Street, Within th’s
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gabled. 12 ozonincs have pointed Gothic arc
over two sash. On both ends of the bhuilding
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igs a frame, three sided,
floor level, a cdou-le

window a* the second floor and a small window within the gable.
At the rear of the huilding stand a serieg of mu.ti-cables and
balcenied wings and additions.

The Tresident's House, buil+t in 1829, is a two story stone and
frame house w.ta a few Queen Anne features. There s a more recent
one story additlon o the southwest end. It is basically a two
story hinped roofed sauare block with cabled proiections on ail four

ides. ©On the norvﬁx szt corner of the house s a three story, pyramid
roofed tower. he windows of the stone first Tloox level have bric:
flav arches, one over one pane sash and white painted louvered bl. . nds.
mhe +ransomed, double leafed entrance doo- is situatod near the
south end of the cast facade. The second floor is of whit2 painted .
rionle ecced boards and has windows of six over six sash with louvered
Kiind pointed hlack. Near the neak of the clippeld cables are smail
windcows that are sresumably used for venitillating the attic. The

(See continuation sheet No. 1)
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third floor level of the tower has mulii naned and shuttered windows on
each of its eicht sides.

Levine Hall, buil+ in 1891, is a Colon al Qevival style brick
building, rectancular in shape and with classical motifs decora+ting
the wincdows, deoors and pedimented cables. Initially built as two
stories 1t was railsed to three £ull floors in 19C1.

Little BaXer Chapel, cedicated in 1875, is a small building with
a central cctagenal space incorporated in a Greek Creoss plan. There
are some Richardsonian forms present such as the massive semi-circular
stone arches over the western entrance and other first floor openings.
At the entrance there 1s a double leafed cdocr with a semi-circular
stained ¢lass “transom above. A bulky, frame, two story tower w.th a
ryramic roof was later added to *he roof of :hn pediment over the
west entrance. On ecach of the fcur exterior wells of the cen tral
octagonal space are large windows with rounded heads proiecting above
the cornice line and enclosed with nedimented gables., Pictoriel
scenes of stained class in these windows are the work of the Baltimore
firm of H. 7. Gernharci and Co. and were installed in 122C.

The Ward Memorial Arch, a lccal internretation of Romanesaue
architvoctn. o oxhibstinag n_v“k.,c.hah duonian influoncea, was Luilt in 1898
alt a locatlon proximale to the President’s llouse and was relocated
on its prese“* site in 1227. Tt is of heavy, rouch cut s*tone wi.h

arcge s=zene Voussolirs framing the semi-circular a:rch. .

Alumni ”aﬁ*, becavse o : ma551ve size and hasically Renaissance
Revival style Lrick architect: 15 T 1ans the best known of the six
structures recordad here. =~ heo : ;L 27 walls at the first floor

-

level of the Qﬁ”ﬁve front bl

'wes®) facad - features

ruszicated entrance bays and two story pilazters with Ionic capitals on
the secornd ahd tﬁ;rd floor levels of the +we vnavillions fiankiﬁg the
curved central section. The central part of the fearade s crowned Ty
& aztic story with circular attic windeows, carlands ond pilasters.

On the rear elevation is a lower, three story, semi-circular apse

with a _ow conical chaped roof.

The interior contains a larce calleried aucditorium widel
recognized for the excellonce of its accoustics, a theatre, work
stone and class rooms. The detailing of the ~wditorium employs a
classical motif threouchout. Some 0f the more interastin g fe :ures
include handsome stained class windows on :he seccnd and +thirxd floor
levels of %the apse.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Western Maryland College was established under the auspices of
the Nh“y*aﬂu Annual Conference of the Vetho&ist Protestant Church and
chartered by an act of the Ma ~y.Land gislative in 1864, Cons’deration
was first civen o a site in the Bmltl ore City area but this was later

+

i
changed to its present site in Wesininster,

The original elcht acre campus was acquired by the college's
state copointed Board o‘ Directors in 1864 utilizing private m-nies. The
site, although privately owned, was one that for ﬂaiy years was us=d
by the citizens of Westminster as a meeting and picn *"c area.
Commonly referred to a* that time as the "O1& Commona it was the scene
of annual fourth of July celebrations, political ra;ﬁys ané during
the Civil Wa ilized by the A+ v of the Potomac to bivouac troops

e

L of guns to prowect the dally arrival of artillery
on the nearby wesctern Maryland raillroad.

The first building to be consructed, combining classrooms and
dormitories, was known ag the Main 3uilding. Combining brick and stone,

& regionally common buildinc material, It was ;n;t;anav construacted in
1866, added to in 1871, 18g7, and 1530, and cdem>lished in 1856. About

fourteen other huildincs were con s+*uctec on e elcht acre c£ite between

1866 and 12%0; but with the of those inc.uded in +his
nomina=ion, all have heen razed and +ﬁer ullidings erected on their
sites. The siructures nominated an hlstoric district are the oldesz
survivine architectural links with *he ninetesnth century beginnince
of the collece.

Alumni Zall has served the college and communi<zy i several ways
=

throuchout its -istory. Designed bv Jackseon C. Goi: of Baltimore, Alumni
Hall was conplezed In 1892 +o funcition as a hall for Commencement exer-
cises, harcuets, and other social Tunctions zuch as a meeting nlace for
the Literary Societies. When Little Raker Chape became +too small to
nold the crowing number of siundents, and previous o the crectiion of the
larger 3axer ~ﬂm0f4al Chapel, Alumni Hall was also <eld on Sundays Zor
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view of the stage from virtually every seat. Alumni ¥Yall alsc houses

the entire Drametic Art Devariment, providing offices for professors
and classrooms ancd stace areas for scudents.

Alumn* Hall is no* only important to the college but to *the surround-
ing ccommunity as well, It sexrved as the major auvdiioriuvm for Westminster
from 1896 to 1971 when the festminster Hich acnool wasg »uiliz, which
included an auditorium with a larcer canacity (1,600 compared o 20} .

But Alumni Hall continues to serve the com.;.itv even now as almost

all of the productions civen by the Dramatic Ar: and Music Derartments

AN S
-

are cpen o the public,

Levine Hall is the oldestcollege classroom building s*+11l standing,
dating back to L2221, It was thz gift of Dr. and Mrs. Charles Billingslea
in memory of their son, Levi ne Bill;ngslea. It was originally bHuilt

to house the Primary Tevartment of the college and was later used for
the Preparatory School. As a Prepnaratory School, the building contained
sleeping rooms for the male students, recitation roomeg, the library, and
the principal's offlce. In 18%%, Levine Hall was enlarged to provide
classroom swpace, and, in 1¢01L, a third floor was added, Levine Hall
currently houvees the Music Department, providing classrooms, studios,
practice rooms, a recu-al H-&*, and _he Doria Music Library.
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The President's House wag hulilL in 21289 as a gift from the Baker
brothers oI Buckeystown, Maryland ané zas housed five consecutive
college presifents and *he*« families. The presence of the President's
House on campus is a dying *tradition in many colleces, but it has allowed
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